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Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Company applied for the first time certain pronouncements, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. Adoption of these pronouncements did not have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial position or performance unless otherwise indicated.


Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarification of the Scope of the Standard (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)



Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such
as foreign exchange gains or losses).
The Company has provided the required information in Note 23 to the parent company financial
statements. As allowed under the transition provisions of the standard, the Company did not
present comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2016.



Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses

Standards Issued but not yet Effective
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the
Company does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant
impact on its financial statements. The Company intends to adopt the following pronouncements
when they become effective.
Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2018


Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions



Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with
PFRS 4



PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognizing revenue.
The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 15.
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PFRS 9, Financial Instruments
PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements
are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.
The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Company’s financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no
impact on the classification and measurement of the Company’s financial liabilities. The
adoption will also have an effect on the Company’s application of hedge accounting and on the
amount of its credit losses. The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this
standard.



Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)



Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.



Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2019


PFRS 16, Leases
Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating or finance
leases in accordance with PAS 17, Leases. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model.
Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on their
balance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest on the
lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less or for which the
underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.
The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual value.
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Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted PFRS 15. When adopting
PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach, with options to use certain transition reliefs.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.
Deferred effectivity


Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Significant Accounting Policies
Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the parent company statement of financial position
based on current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when:
 It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when:
 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively.
Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and cash in banks. Cash in banks earn interest at their respective bank
deposit rates.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Directly attributable
transaction costs, if any, are included in the initial measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, except for any financial instrument measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).
The Company recognizes a financial asset or financial liability in the parent company statement of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
a period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a
component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to holders of
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financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any related income tax
benefits.
Financial instruments are classified as either financial assets or financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets, or other financial liabilities,
as appropriate.
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, reevaluates this designation at each financial yearend.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s financial instruments include loans and
receivables, AFS financial assets and other financial liabilities. The Company has no HTM
investments and financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortized cost in the parent company
statement of financial position. Amortization is determined using the effective interest rate method.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the
financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
Included under this category are the Company’s cash in banks, receivables and due from affiliates as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as such or are not
classified in any of the other categories. Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as
AFS if they are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity
requirements or changes in market conditions. Included under this category are the Company’s
quoted and unquoted equity investments as at December 31, 2017 and 2016. After initial recognition,
quoted AFS financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized as a separate
component of equity and as other comprehensive income (OCI) until the investment is derecognized
or until the investment is determined to be impaired. Unquoted AFS financial assets, on the other
hand, are carried at cost, net of impairment, until the investment is derecognized. These financial
assets are classified as noncurrent assets unless the intention is to dispose such assets within 12
months from the financial reporting date.
Other financial liabilities
This category pertains to financial liabilities that are neither held for trading nor designated as at
FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or
borrowings.
The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at amortized
cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest rate method of amortization (or
accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction costs. Included
under this category are the Company’s accounts payable and accrued expenses, dividends payable,
talent fees and commissions payable and loans payable as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as AFS financial assets, and non-financial assets
such as land classified as property and equipment at revalued amount, at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:
•
•

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the parent company financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
•
•
•

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the parent company financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or liabilities and the level of the fair
value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
“Day 1” Difference
When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for
recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where data used is not observable, the difference
between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs
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become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference amount.
Classification of Financial Instruments Between Debt and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as debt if it provides for a contractual obligation to:
 Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
 Exchange financial assets or liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavorable to the Company; or
 Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.
If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Company assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and all of the counterparties.
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of similar financial assets) is
derecognized when:
•
•

•

the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;
the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or
the Company has transferred its right to receive cash from the financial asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but has
transferred control of the financial asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash from a financial asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset nor transferred
control of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,
or has expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
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new financial liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or
loss.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial assets carried at amortized cost
The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is
collectively assessed for impairment. Financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be
reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss shall be
recognized in profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.
Loans, together with the associated allowance, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. If
in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance for impairment losses account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortized cost at reversal date.
In relation to receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company
will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying
amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Receivables together
with the related allowance are written-off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.
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AFS financial assets
For AFS financial assets, the Company assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or
loss - is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in fair value after impairment are
recognized as OCI.
Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies are stated at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in, first-out method)
and net realizable value (NRV). Cost includes the invoice price and related charges such as freight,
insurance, and taxes, among others. NRV is the current replacement cost.
Investment in an Associate
In 2016, the Company’s investment in Elizalde Hotels and Resorts Inc. (EHRI) or “the Associate”, a
44.44%-owned investee, where the Company has significant influence since the date of acquisition, is
accounted for under the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in EHRI is carried
in the statement of financial position at cost, plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share in
net assets of EHRI, less any dividends declared and impairment in value. The Company’s share in
the financial performance of the associate is reflected in profit or loss. Unrealized gains arising from
transactions with the associate are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s interest in the associate,
against the investment in the associate. Unrealized losses are eliminated similarly, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment of the asset transferred. The financial statements of the
associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company and its accounting policies
conform to those used by the Company for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Investment in a Subsidiary
In 2017, the Company acquired control over its investment in EHRI and accordingly accounted it as
investment in a subsidiary.
Investment in a subsidiary are accounted for under the cost method of accounting in the financial
statements. The investment is carried in the parent company statement of financial position at cost
less any impairment in value. The Company recognizes income from the investment only to the
extent that the Company receives distributions from accumulated profits of the subsidiaries arising
after the date of acquisition.
Distributions received in excess of such profits are regarded as recovery of investment and are
recognized as a reduction of the cost of the investment.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment in value.
The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties,
taxes, and any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
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from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of
performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional cost of property and equipment. When
assets are sold or retired, their cost, accumulated depreciation and amortization, and any impairment
in value are eliminated from the accounts. Any gain or loss resulting from the disposal is included in
profit or loss.
Land is stated at revalued amount based on the fair market value of the property determined by an
independent firm of appraisers as of reporting period. The increase in the valuation of land, net of
deferred income tax liability, is credited to “Revaluation increment on land” in the statement of
financial position and recognized as OCI. Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
increment realized in respect of the previous valuation will be released from the revaluation
increment in OCI directly to retained earnings. Decreases that offset previous increases in respect of
the same property are charged against the revaluation increment. All other decreases are charged
against current operations.
Depreciation commences when an asset is in its location and condition and it is capable of being
operated in the manner intended by management. It is computed using the straight-line method,
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building
Broadcasting and transmission equipment
Furniture and equipment
Transportation equipment

Years
7-17
8-11
5
4

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease or life of the building and
improvements ranging from seven to seventeen years, whichever is shorter.
Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost, including cost
of construction and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time that
the relevant assets are completed and ready for operational use.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of
property and equipment.
Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use.
Investment Properties
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently,
investment properties, except land, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value, if any. The
carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an
investment property.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognized in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of
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construction or development. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when,
there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of
development with a view to sale. These transfers are recorded using the carrying amount of the
investment property at the date of change in use.
Building classified as investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of ten years.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of frequency license and intellectual property rights. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.
The Company’s intangible assets are assessed as finite and are amortized over the estimated useful
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that these may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial reporting date. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized in profit or loss.
Amortization commences when the intangible asset is acquired and is capable of being owned and
operated in the manner intended by management. It is computed using the straight-line method,
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Frequency license
Intellectual property rights

Years
13
3

Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the fair value of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other assets
The carrying values of property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other
nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing is required, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the
assets or the cash-generating units (CGU) are written down to their recoverable amounts. The
recoverable amount of the assets is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use.
The fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Any impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.
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Goodwill
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment for goodwill is
determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the goodwill relates. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss when the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than its carrying amount. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods.
Capital Stock
Capital stock is the portion of the paid in capital representing the total par value of the shares issued.
Additional Paid-in Capital
Additional paid-in capital represents the amount paid in excess of the par value of the shares issued.
Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction from proceeds, net of tax.
Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss, net of any dividend
declaration and other capital adjustments.
OCI
OCI comprises items of income and expense that are not recognized in profit or loss in accordance
with PFRSs. The Company’s OCI includes net changes in fair values of AFS financial assets,
revaluation increment on land carried at revalued amount and remeasurement gains (losses) on
accrued retirement benefits.
Treasury Stock
Treasury stocks are shares of the Company which are reacquired and are measured at cost and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instrument.
Revenue
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred or
the services have been rendered to the customer, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, regardless of when the amount is
received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding
discounts and rebates. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in
order to determine if it is acting as a principal or an agent. The Company recognizes revenue on a
gross basis with the amount remitted to the other party being accounted for as part of costs and
expenses.
The following specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Broadcasting fees are recognized as income when the program is broadcasted or the advertisement is
aired, net of agency commissions, incentives and discounts.
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues using the effective interest method.
Processing income is recognized as the services are rendered.
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Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.
Cost of Services and Operating Expenses
Cost of services and operating expenses are recognized when incurred. They are measured at the fair
value of the consideration paid or payable.
Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable.
When VAT from sales of services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases of goods
and services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the statement of financial position.
When VAT passed on from purchases of goods and services (input VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of
services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the parent company statement of
financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.
The net amount of output VAT is presented under “Accounts payable and accrued expenses” account
in the parent company statement of financial position.
Retirement Benefits
Accrued retirement benefits, as presented in the parent company statement of financial position, is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan
assets, adjusted for the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset
ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. Retirement benefits costs consist of service costs, net interest on the net
defined benefit liability or asset and remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on nonroutine settlements are recognized in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized when plan
amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by an independent
qualified actuary.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or loss.
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods.
Plan assets are held in trust and managed by a trustee bank. Plan assets are not available to the
creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid directly to the Company. The fair value of plan assets
is based on market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assets
is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk
associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they
have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value
of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement
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of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
The Company’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.
Income Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
financial reporting date.
Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss
is recognized under OCI in equity.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each financial reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the financial reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off
current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;
c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or
d. there is a substantial change to the asset.
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When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d as mentioned above, and
at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario b.
Company as lessor
Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
Company as lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Rent expense is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income by the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year and adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential common
shares, if any.
In determining both the basic and the diluted earnings per share, the effect of stock dividends, if any,
is accounted for retroactively.
Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies (i.e., currencies other than the Peso) are initially recorded using the
functional currency exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated using the functional currency closing
exchange rate at the end of reporting period. All differences are taken to profit or loss.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the parent company financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to parent company financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the parent
company financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to parent company financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are assessed continually to
ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the parent company financial statements. If it
has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related
income are recognized in the parent company financial statements.
Events after the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the
reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.
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1. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of the parent company financial statements in compliance with PFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and
disclosed in the financial statements. The judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the parent
company financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances that are believed to be reasonable as at the date of the parent company financial
statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.
The judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
Judgment
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgment, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the parent company financial statements:
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee
The Company has a lease agreement with a third party, covering its satellite communications services
and with a related party for its office space and transmitter site. The Company has determined that
the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying properties are retained by the lessors since the
lease does not transfer ownership of the assets to the Company, the lease term is not for the major part
of the economic life of the assets and the Company has no option to purchase the assets at the end of
the lease agreements. Accordingly, the leases were accounted for as operating leases and were
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Rent expense amounted to =
P22.0 million and
=
P22.1 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes 17 and 21).
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor
The Company has arrangements with various lessees covering the building units it offers for lease,
the ownership over which was determined to have been retained by the Company. Accordingly, these
leases were accounted for as operating leases. Rent income amounted to =
P8.4 million and
=
P8.6 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Classification of property
The Company determines whether a property is classified as property and equipment or investment
property as follows:


Property and equipment which are occupied for use by, or in the operations of, the Company and
not for sale in the ordinary course of business.



Investment property comprises building spaces and improvements which are not occupied for use
by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are
held primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation.

The Company considers each property separately in making its judgment.
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Estimations
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
financial reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
Estimation of allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company reviews its receivables at each financial reporting date to assess whether the allowance
for doubtful accounts is adequate. In particular, judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance
required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may
differ, resulting in future changes in the allowance.
Provisions are made for specific and group billed accounts where objective evidence of impairment
exists. The Company determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based on impairment
assessments of individual customer balances. Individual balances for which there is no objective
evidence of impairment are assessed collectively by applying a loss rate determined based on a fiveyear average of historical losses. The individual impairment assessment is an inherently uncertain
process involving various assumptions and factors about the financial condition of the customer,
estimates of amounts still collectible and, for the collective assessment, the loss rates used. These
assumptions could be significantly different from actual credit losses.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to =
P69.8 million and
=
P55.2 million, respectively. Receivables, net of related allowance, amounted toP
=363.2 million and
=
P289.4 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 6).
Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets
The Company estimated the useful lives of its property and equipment and intangible assets based on
the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The Company annually reviews
the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets based on factors that
include asset utilization, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental changes
and anticipated use of the assets. It is possible that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying value of depreciable property and equipment
amounted to =
P86.5 million and =
P96.9 million, respectively (see Note 9). Carrying value of net
intangible assets amounted to =
P44.3 million and =
P56.1 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively (see Note 11). Total depreciation and amortization relating to property and equipment
and intangible assets charged to operations amounted to =
P30.8 million and =
P30.0 million 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Notes 9, 11 and 17).
Revaluation of property and equipment
The Company carries land classified under property and equipment at revalued amounts, with
changes in fair value being recognized in OCI. The Company engaged an independent valuation
specialist to assess the fair value as at the financial reporting date. The key assumptions used to
determine the fair value of the properties are provided in Note 9. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
the carrying value of the land, carried at fair value, amounted to =
P221.6 million and
=
P216.5 million, respectively. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, revaluation increment on land (net
of deferred tax) amounted to =
P147.8 million and =
P144.3 million, respectively (see Note 9).
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Assessment of impairment of noncurrent nonfinancial assets except goodwill and
land at revalued amount
The Company assesses the impairment of assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the Company
considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
a. significant adverse changes in the technological, market, or economic environment in which the
Company operates;
b. significant decrease in the market value of an asset;
c. significant increase in the discount rate used for the value-in-use calculations;
d. evidence of obsolescence and physical damage;
e. significant changes in the manner in which an asset is used or expected to be used;
f. plans to restructure or discontinue an operation; and,
g. evidence is available from internal reporting that the economic performance of an asset is, or will
be, worse than expected.
Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value-in-use.
The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction
while value-in-use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are
estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount represents the value-in-use, determined as the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assets. The estimated cash flows
are projected using growth rates based on historical experience and business plans and are discounted
using pretax discount rates that reflect the current assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.
Based on management’s evaluation, no impairment loss needs to be recognized on the Company’s
property and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets (except goodwill) and other
noncurrent assets in 2017 and 2016. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the total carrying values of
the Company’s noncurrent nonfinancial assets, excluding goodwill, amounted to =
P409.7 million and
=
P421.0 million, respectively (see Notes 9, 10 and 11).
Assessment of impairment of goodwill
For goodwill, the Company determines whether it is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated. The
impairment test for goodwill is based on value in use calculations that use a discounted cash flow
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company has not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset based of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive
to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the revenue growth rate and
the long-term growth rate for extrapolation purposes. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
carrying value of goodwill amounted to =
P38.0 million. The key assumptions used to determine the
recoverable amount for the goodwill, including sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further
explained in Note 11.
Recognition of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each financial reporting date and
reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
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Based on management’s evaluation, there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which
the deferred tax assets can be applied. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, recognized deferred tax
assets amounted to =
P22.3 million and =
P19.4 million, respectively (see Note 20).
Estimation of retirement benefits cost and liability
The determination of the obligation and retirement benefits cost is dependent on assumptions used by
the actuary in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 19 and include
among others, discount rates which are determined by using risk-free interest rate of government
bonds consistent with the estimated term of the obligation and salary increase rates. In accordance
with PFRSs, actual results that differ from the Company’s assumptions are accumulated and
amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded
obligation in such future periods. While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable
and appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the
assumptions may materially affect the retirement benefits obligation.
Accrued retirement benefits - net amounted to =
P4.8 million and =
P12.7 million as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 19).
Provisions
The Company provides for present obligations (legal or constructive) where it is probable that there
will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that will be required to settle said
obligations. An estimate of the provision is based on known information at the end of the reporting
date, net of any estimated amount that may be reimbursed to the Company. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pretax rate that reflects the risks
specific to the liability. The amount of provision is being reassessed at least on an annual basis to
consider new relevant information. There were no provisions recognized in 2017 and 2016
(see Note 27).

2. Segment Information
The Company is organized into only one operating division, radio broadcasting, which is its primary
activity. The Company has six programming formats, namely DZRH and “Aksyon Radyo” stations,
Love Radio, YES FM, Hot-FM, Radyo Natin, and Easy Rock.
For management purposes, the Company considers the entire business as one segment. Management
monitors the operating results of the business for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment.
Broadcasting fee (shown as “Revenue” in the parent company statements of comprehensive income),
net income, total assets and total liabilities as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are the same as reported elsewhere in the accompanying parent
company financial statements.

Broadcasting fee
Net income
Total assets
Total liabilities

Consolidated
Balances
2017
P
=1,066,386,226
124,399,219
1,745,125,386
711,490,904

Parent Company Financial
Reconciliation
Statements Balances
2017
2016
2017
P
=– P
P1,251,954,721
=1,066,386,226 =
–
186,604,989
124,399,219
1,315,620,521
(171,768,556) 1,573,356,830
(73,670,588)
391,452,004
637,820,316
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The Company has no revenue from transactions with a single external customer accounting for more
than 10% or more of the broadcasting fee. All customers of the Company are located in the
Philippines.

3. Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks amounting to =
P133.6 million and P
=217.2 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Interest income from cash in banks amounted to =
P0.3 million and =
P0.2 million in 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

4. Receivables

Trade
Advances to stations (see Note 14)
Others
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

2017
P
=376,232,522
39,895,460
16,884,762
433,012,744
69,784,539
P
=363,228,205

2016
=
P302,766,134
26,059,199
15,758,500
344,583,833
55,214,946
=
P289,368,887

Trade receivables, advances to stations and other receivables are noninterest-bearing and have credit
terms of approximately 90 days.
Movement of allowance for doubtful accounts by class is as follows:

January 1, 2016
Provisions (see Note 18)
Reversal (see note 18)
Write-off
December 31, 2016
Provisions (see Note 18)
Reversal (see Note 18)
Write-off
December 31, 2017

Trade
=
P61,907,332
4,251,738
(15,063,560)
(1,968,355)
P
=49,127,155
15,544,190
(2,418,131)
–
P
=62,253,214

Advances to
stations
=
P434,805
–
–
–
P
=434,805
–
–
(71,386)
P
=363,419

Others
=
P6,791,412
–
(1,138,426)
–
P
= 5,652,986
1,531,588
–
(16,668)
P
= 7,167,906

Total
=
P69,133,549
4,251,738
(16,201,986)
(1,968,355)
P
= 55,214,946
17,075,778
(2,418,131)
(88,054)
P
= 69,784,539

The table below shows the amount of allowance for doubtful accounts from individual impairment
and from collective impairment:
2017

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

Trade
P
=5,588,793
56,664,421
P
=62,253,214

Advances to
stations
P
=363,419
–
P
=363,419

Others
Total
P
=– P
=5,952,212
7,167,906 63,832,327
P
=7,167,906 P
=69,784,539
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2016

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

Trade
=
P25,529,725
23,597,430
=
P49,127,155

Advances to
stations
=
P434,805
–
=
P434,805

Others
Total
=
P– =
P25,964,530
5,652,986 29,250,416
=
P5,652,986 =
P55,214,946

5. AFS Financial Assets
The carrying value of AFS financial assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 follows:
Unquoted
Less allowance for impairment losses
Quoted

Amount
=
P42,754,730
455,275
42,299,455
120,000
=
P42,419,455

The fair value of the quoted shares of stock is determined based on quoted market price
(see Note 25).
As at December 31, 2017, the Company has no intention to dispose the unquoted shares of stock
primarily composed of investments in Star Parks Corporation (SPC) and EHC. These unquoted
shares of stock are carried and presented at cost less impairment losses because their fair value cannot
be reliably determined.
Dividend income from AFS financial assets amounted to =
P4.6 million in 2017 and nil in 2016.

6. Investment in a Subsidiary
This account consists of investments in EHRI, a Company engaged primarily to acquire, construct,
manage, own, lease, maintain, operate and/or engage in the business of hotels, resorts, private clubs,
restaurants, cocktail bars and other allied business necessary or connected therewith and to operate,
manage, and/or maintain any and all services and facilities incident or necessary thereto, and/or invest
in companies engaged in the said business.
In 2016, the Company purchased shares from EHRI amounting to =
P200.0 million for 44.44%
ownership interest. The investment is classified as investment in an associate and accounted under
the equity method. Thus, the balance as at December 31, 2016 is carried at cost less equity of the
Company in EHRI’s net loss.
On December 29, 2017, the Company purchased additional shares from EHRI amounting to
=
P240.0 million to bring its total ownership interest to 80%. The investment is classified as investment
in a subsidiary since the Company obtained control of EHRI and accounted the investment under cost
method in the parent company financial statements. Consequently, the previously recognized equity
in net loss of EHRI in 2016 is reversed to profit or loss as reflected in the 2017 parent companu
statement of comprehensive income.
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The movements of the investment account follow:
2017
P
=199,542,513
240,000,000
–
457,487
P
=440,000,000

Beginning balance
Investments during the year
Equity in net loss
Reversal of equity in net loss in prior year
Balance at December 31, 2017

2016
=
P–
200,000,000
(457,487)
–
=
P199,542,513

7. Property and Equipment
a. Property and equipment carried at cost consists of:
2017
Broadcasting
Building and
and
Leasehold Transmission Furniture and Transportation Construction
Improvements
Equipment
Equipment
Equipment in Progress
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P
=163,640,207
Additions
240,949
Balance at end of year
163,881,156
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 137,144,068
Depreciation (see Note 17)
4,002,788
Balance at end of year
141,146,856
Net Book Values

Total

P
=452,118,264
328,999
452,447,263

P
=95,094,041
5,105,775
100,199,816

P
=44,551,915
2,947,516
47,499,431

P
=1,235,845
6,715,579
7,951,424

P
=756,640,272
15,338,818
771,979,090

385,528,197
12,123,197
397,651,394

94,845,208
416,761
95,261,969

40,995,253
2,431,800
43,427,053

–
–
–

658,512,726
18,974,546
677,487,272

P
=22,734,300

P
=54,795,869

P
=4,937,847

P
=4,072,378

P
=7,951,424

P
=94,491,818

Building and
Leasehold
Improvements

Broadcasting
and
Transmission
Equipment

Furniture and
Equipment

Transportation
Equipment

Construction
in Progress

Total

=
P451,507,330
–
610,934
452,118,264

=
P95,094,041
–
–
95,094,041

=
P42,264,088
2,287,827
–
44,551,915

374,427,897
11,100,300
385,528,197

94,756,219
88,989
94,845,208

38,392,482
2,602,771
40,995,253

–
–
–

640,293,371
18,219,355
658,512,726

=
P66,590,067

=
P248,833

=
P3,556,662

=
P1,235,845

=
P98,127,546

2016

Cost
Balance at beginning of year =
P163,640,207
Additions
–
Reclassification
–
Balance at end of year
163,640,207
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 132,716,773
Depreciation (see Note 17)
4,427,295
Balance at end of year
137,144,068
Net Book Values

=
P26,496,139

=
P1,846,779 =
P754,352,445
–
2,287,827
(610,934)
–
1,235,845
756,640,272

The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still in use amounted to =
P591.0 million and
=
P587.7 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Company does not have idle assets as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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b. Land at revalued amount as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consists of:

Cost:
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Balance at end of year
Revaluation increment on land:
Balance at beginning of year
Increase
Balance at end of year
Carrying amount

2017

2016

P
=10,396,194
–
10,396,194

=
P10,166,194
230,000
10,396,194

206,102,006
5,077,700
211,179,706
P
=221,575,900

181,361,306
24,740,700
206,102,006
=216,498,200
P

In 2016, the Company acquired a parcel of land with a cost of =
P0.2 million.
The revalued amounts of =
P221.6 million and =
P216.5 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, are
based on the valuation conducted by independent appraisal companies as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. The appraisal companies used the market data or sales comparison
approach where the fair market values are determined by referring to the extent, character and
utility, and sales and holding prices of similar land, significantly adjusted for dissimilarities in the
nature, location or condition of the specific properties.
The fair values of these parcels of land are determined using Level 3 valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
(see Note 25). The price per square meter of significant unobservable input is from =
P2,300 to
=
P22,000 in 2017. Significant increases (decreases) in the estimated price per square meter in
isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value.
The revaluation increment, net of deferred tax liability, of =
P147.8 million and =
P144.3 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, is included in the equity section of the parent
company statements of financial position.

8. Investment Properties

Cost
Balance at beginning and
end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning and
end of year
Net Book Values

Land

2017
Building

Total

P
=43,162,500

P
=80,381,524

P
=123,544,024

–

80,381,524

80,381,524

P
=43,162,500

P
=–

P
=43,162,500
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Cost
Balance at beginning and
end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation (see Note 17)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Values

Land

2016
Building

Total

=
P43,162,500

=
P80,381,524

=
P123,544,024

–
–
–

80,380,474
1,050
80,381,524

80,380,474
1,050
80,381,524

=
P43,162,500

=
P–

=
P43,162,500

Investment properties are leased to employees and third parties. The total fair value of the investment
properties, based on the recent appraisal reports, amounted =
P92.3 million for land and
=
P82.3 million for building and other property. The latest appraisal report was as at December 31,
2017. The fair values of the properties are based on valuations performed by an accredited
independent appraiser.
The fair values of these investment properties were determined using Level 3 valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
(see Note 25).
The appraiser used the market data or sales comparison approach in determining the fair value of the
land. The valuation was made on the basis of the market value determined by referring to the extent,
character and utility, and sales and holding prices of similar properties, significantly adjusted for
dissimilarities in the nature, location or condition of the specific properties. The fair value of building
and other property, which represent reproduction cost less depreciation, was arrived at by the
appraiser using the cost approach. This method determines the fair value of the building and other
property by estimating the cost to create the same structure with the same design and using similar
construction materials.
The highest and best use of investment properties, as determined by the appraiser, is a mixed
commercial and residential utility, which is similar to their current use.
Rental income generated from these investment properties amounted to =
P8.4 million in 2017 and
=
P8.6 million in 2016. Related direct operating expenses amounted to =
P8.5 million and =
P8.0 million in
2017 and 2016, respectively.

9. Intangible Assets and Goodwill
The Company’s intangible assets and goodwill pertain to a radio station acquired in 2008 at a cost of
=
P229.6 million. The excess of acquisition cost over the adjusted fair values of the identifiable assets
amounting to =
P38.0 million was recognized as goodwill.
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The net book values of the intangible assets as at December 31 are as follows:

Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Amortization (see Note 17)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Values

Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Amortization (see Note 17)
Balance at end of year
Net Book Values

Frequency license

2017
Intellectual
Property Rights

Total

P
=153,594,927

P
=5,810,867

P
=159,405,794

97,473,715
11,814,996
109,288,711

5,810,867
–
5,810,867

103,284,582
11,814,996
115,099,578

P
=44,306,216

P
=–

P
=44,306,216

Frequency license

2016
Intellectual
Property Rights

Total

=
P153,594,927

=
P5,810,867

=
P159,405,794

85,658,719
11,814,996
97,473,715

5,810,867
–
5,810,867

91,469,586
11,814,996
103,284,582

=
P56,121,212

=
P–

=
P56,121,212

The remaining estimated useful life of frequency license as at December 31, 2017 is 3.75 years.
Impairment Testing of Goodwill
The Company performs its annual impairment test every December of each year. Goodwill is
allocated to only one CGU, which is the DWRK radio station. The recoverable amount of the CGU
determined based on value-in-use, is compared to its carrying amount. An impairment loss is
recognized if the carrying amount of the CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of the CGU, which exceeds its carrying amount by =
P387.3 million and
=
P643.5 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, has been determined based on the
value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections from financial budgets covering a five-year
period. The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections and the expected growth rates
used in the extrapolation of the cash flows beyond the five-year period are shown in the key
assumptions disclosure below. The expected growth rate is the same as the long-term average growth
rate for the media industry. As a result of this analysis, management has determined that there was no
impairment loss in 2017 and 2016 since the value-in-use exceeds the carrying value of the identifiable
assets of the CGU.
Key Assumptions
The following are the key assumptions used in management’s analysis:

Discount rate
Revenue growth rate
Long-term growth rate

2017
15.10%
5%
5%

2016
16.15%
10%
6.5%
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Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
The discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risk specific to the CGU, taking into
consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate is derived from the weighted average cost
of capital, which takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the
expected return on investment of the Company’s investors. The cost of debt is based on average
lending rates. Segment specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors, evaluated
annually based on publicly available market data. The carrying amount of the CGU is enough to
absorb significant changes in the discount rates as at December 31, 2017.
On the average, the revenue of the CGU over the next five years is projected to grow in line with the
economy or with nominal Gross Domestic Product. Historically, advertising spending growth had a
direct correlation with economic growth. Even with a revenue growth rate of zero percent, there
would still be no impairment in 2017.
The long-term growth rate is based on the projected growth of the Company, based on historical
experience, economic conditions and the Company’s future plans. Even with a long-term growth rate
of zero percent, there would still be no impairment in 2017.

10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Trade
Accrued expenses:
Program cost
Separation costs
Agency commissions
Service fees (see Note 14)
Personnel
Communication, light and water
Others
Output VAT - net
Advances from sponsors
Withholding taxes payable
Advance rental
Non-trade payables
Others

2017
P
=139,362,535

2016
=
P134,664,643

36,908,365
31,545,307
30,930,120
15,674,849
4,204,060
3,573,089
10,024,283
39,883,756
17,732,133
4,870,454
2,186,111
705,857
934,836
P
=338,535,755

5,743,582
26,918,156
23,176,850
26,587,053
5,233,544
3,443,121
5,095,819
38,710,891
13,171,091
9,295,419
2,176,128
–
905,702
=295,121,999
P

Trade payables and accrued expenses consist of amounts due to suppliers and service providers and
are usually payable within 30 days.
Accrued separation costs pertain to the unpaid balance of separation pay of employees who were
transferred in 2002 to the affiliated service companies. These employees expressly agreed in writing
to receive their separation pay from the Company only after their final/actual separation/resignation
from the affiliated service companies.
Advances from sponsors are non-refundable placement fees paid by the Company’s customers for
future broadcast airings.
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Other payables consist of withholding taxes payable and dues to various government agencies which
are normally settled within the following year.

11. Loans Payable
This account consists of:

Principal
Less unamortized debt issuance cost

2017
=
P225,000,000
1,059,904
=
P223,940,096

On May 12, 2017, the Company entered into a =
P350.0 million seven-year term loan facility with
Bank of the Philippine Islands (the “Lender” or “BPI”). The proceeds of the loan will be used by the
Company to finance its investment in EHRI, which will invest in Feliz Hotel Boracay, Inc., for the
purpose of constructing and operating a hotel in Boracay Island, Aklan. During the year the
Company has obtained loans totaling to =
P225.0 million in four drawdowns as follows:
Drawdown Date
July 2017
August 2017
October 2017
December 2017

Amount
=
P70,000,000
60,000,000
50,000,000
45,000,000
=
P225,000,000

The loans are payable over seven years in 21 consecutive quarterly installments on each repayment
date commencing on July 4, 2019 while the interest on the unpaid principal amount shall be paid in
quarterly payments from the initial drawdown date.
Interest Rate
The Company has an option to pay interest based on a fixed interest rate or a floating interest rate set
forth in the notice of borrowing at each drawdown. The Company elected to pay floating interest for
all drawdowns made as of yearend. Floating interest rate is the bid yield for the relevant benchmark
3-month PDSTR2 at approximately 4:15pm one banking day prior to the first banking day of each
quarterly interest period and a spread of point ninety-five percent (0.95%) per annum subject to a
floor rate based on the sum of the prevailing Term Deposit Facility rate or similar rate of the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas for tenors closest to the Interest Period ("BSP TDF") plus a spread of 0.50% per
annum.
Prepayment Option
The Company also have the option to prepay the loan after the third year from the initial drawdown,
wholly or partially, at any time during the term. The amount payable in respect of each prepayment
shall be the full or partial outstanding principal amount of the loan plus any accrued but unpaid
interest, penalties and other charges, if any. Both options were assessed as clearly and closely related
to the loan and does not require bifurcation.
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Debt Issuance Costs
Costs incurred in relation to the loan drawdown, totaling =
P1.1 million as at December 31, 2017, were
capitalized as debt issue costs. Debt issue costs were amortized using effective interest rate method.
In 2017, borrowing costs related to the loan recognized as expense in the 2017 parent company
statement of comprehensive income amounted to =
P3.6 million. This comprises of interest expense
amounting to =
P3.5 million, and amortization of debt issue cost amounting to =
P0.1 million.
Unamortized debt discount, representing capitalized debt issue costs is presented as deduction from
the Company’s loans payable.
Debt Covenant
The Company’s loan facility contain certain restrictive covenants that require the Company to comply
with specified financial ratios, namely, debt-to-equity ratio which is not allowed to exceed 2:1 and
current ratio not to fall below 1:1.
As at December 31, 2017, the Company is in compliance with its debt covenants (see Note 22).
Suretyship
The loan is secured by a Continuing Suretyship of EHC and SPC essentially as primary obligors,
being jointly and severally liable with the Company to BPI, its successors and assigns, or its
subsidiaries or affiliates for the payment of the loan.

12. Related Party Transactions
Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among entities which
are under common control with the reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or
stockholders. Key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close
members of the family of these individuals, and companies associated with these individuals also
constitute related parties. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed
to the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.
In the normal course of business, the Company has transactions with the following related parties:
• EHC, ultimate parent company;
• Cebu Broadcasting Company (CBC), an entity under common control;
• Philippine Broadcasting Corporation (PBC), an entity under common control;
• Pacific Broadcasting System, Inc. (PBSI), an entity under common control;
• Feliz Hotel Boracay, Inc. (FHBI), a subsidiary; and
• Other related parties under common control
These transactions will be settled through cash.
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The summary of transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are presented below:

Related Party/Nature
Ultimate parent company:
EHC
Advances

Dividend declaration

Dividend income
(see Note 9)
AFS investment
(see Note 9)
Entities under common
control:
CBC
Advances

Program costs

Dividend declaration

Rent income
PBC
Advances

Program costs

Dividend declaration

Rent income
PBSI
Advances

2017
Transactions
during the
Outstanding
Year
Balance

2016
Transactions
during the
Outstanding
Year
Balance

P
=144,110,392

P
=126,800,118

=
P69,734,483

=
P48,636,013

41,867,632

(41,867,632)

62,801,448

(20,933,816)

4,621,033

4,621,033

–

–

–

16,754,820

–

16,754,820

Not impaired

18,824,018

30,635,694

29,498,176

37,930,912

141,383,214

(23,227,429)

160,739,186

–

15,000,000

(15,000,000)

22,500,000

(7,500,000)

90,000

–

90,000

–

Unsecured, interestfree with no definite
call dates; with
offsetting
agreement; no
impairment
Refer to discussion on
marketing
agreements below.
2017 - payable on
February 15, 2018;
2016 - payable on
January 18, 2017
Unsecured,
noninterest-bearing

3,849,732

16,543,269

3,231,661

17,293,269

19,405,384

(3,171,612)

19,491,958

–

1,500,000

(1,500,000)

2,250,000

(750,000)

90,000

–

90,000

–

14,969,980

20,746,774

14,162,307

20,655,201

Terms and
conditions

Unsecured, interestfree with no definite
call dates; with
offsetting
agreement; no
impairment
2017 - payable on
February 15, 2018;
2016 - payable on
January 18, 2017
With offsetting
agreement

Unsecured, interestfree with no definite
call dates; with
offsetting
agreement; no
impairment
Refer to discussion on
marketing
agreements below.
2017 - payable on
February 15, 2018;
2016 - payable on
January 18, 2017.;
with offsetting
agreement
Unsecured,
noninterest- bearing
Unsecured, interestfree with no definite
call dates; with
offsetting
agreement; no
impairment

Forward
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Related Party/Nature
Program costs

2017
Transactions
during the
Outstanding
Year
Balance
P
= 48,639,838
(P
= 10,303,321)

2016
Transactions
during the
Outstanding
Year
Balance
=
P52,490,586
=
P–

Terms and
conditions
Refer to discussion on
marketing
agreements below.
Unsecured,
noninterest-bearing

Rent income

90,000

–

90,000

–

SPC
Rent expense

10,702,513

(1,637,480)

10,702,514

(7,233,646)

Affiliated service companies
Advances

10,000,958

6,012,627

21,999,629

2,008,086

109,227,870

(7,341,825)

151,822,461

(12,406,504)

1,193,454

(P
= 1,193,454)

=
P2,291,065

(P
=2,291,065)

Unsecured, interestfree with no definite
call dates; with
offsetting
agreement; no
impairment

4,530,722

865,355

1,697,540

7,252,619

Unsecured, interestfree with no definite
call dates and no
impairment

26,208,841

–

30,341,191

–

Service fees

Subsidiary:
FHBI
Advances

Other related parties:
Officers
Advances

Key management personnel
Short-term employee

Unsecured,
noninterest-bearing
Unsecured, interestfree with no definite
call dates and no
impairment
Unsecured, interestfree with no definite
call dates and no
impairment

None

benefits

The Company’s significant related party transactions are as follows:
a. The Company and several affiliated broadcasting companies, which are owned and managed by
certain stockholders and/or members of the BOD of the Company, entered into marketing
agreements, whereby the affiliated broadcasting companies designated the Company as their sole
marketing outfit for the sales, promotion, and marketing of the radio commercial airtime of all
radio broadcast stations of these affiliated broadcasting companies. The original marketing
agreement, which was effective for a period of five years from January 1, 1998, has been renewed
annually, thereafter.
Under the marketing agreements, the Company shall remit to the affiliated broadcasting
companies a certain percentage of the annual revenue from the sale of the commercial time of the
radio broadcast stations after agency commission. Total fees pertaining to related parties
included under “Program costs” presented as part of “Costs of services” in the parent company
statements of comprehensive income amounted to =
P209.4 million in 2017 and =
P232.7 million in
2016 (see Note 17). The Company also bills the affiliated broadcasting companies for their share
in the expenses for operating the radio broadcast stations.
b. On December 29, 2017, CBC, PBC and PBSI (collectively referred to herein as “the Networks”),
the Company and EHC, entered into a Memorandum of Agreement confirming the agreement
among the parties to the net settlement of the respective receivables and payables as at
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December 31, 2017. The Networks, the Company and EHC made a similar agreement on
December 29, 2017 for the net settlement of receivables and payables as at December 31, 2017
(see Note 24).
c. The Company grants and obtains short-term interest-free advances to and from its affiliates,
which are owned and managed by certain stockholders and/or members of the BOD of the
Company.
d. The short-term employee benefits of key management personnel amounted to =
P26.21 million,
=
P30.3 million and =
P15.8 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The pension benefits of the key
management personnel are not covered by the Company’s retirement plan.
e. The payable to affiliated service companies amounting to =
P7.3 million and =
P12.4 million in 2017
and 2016, respectively, are included in “Accrued expenses” as part of “Service fees”. The
advances to affiliated service companies and other related parties amounting to =
P6.9 million and
=
P9.3 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, are included in “Receivables” as part of “Advances
to stations” (see Note 6).

13. Capital Stock
The Company was listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on October 8, 1949. In its initial public
offering, the Company offered the share at a price of =
P1.05. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company had 605 shareholders on record.
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, capital stock consists of 1,000,000,000 authorized common
shares with par value of =
P1.00 per share, of which 402,803,777 shares have been issued.
On October 19, 1976, the stockholders approved the increase in the authorized capital stock of the
Company from =
P1.5 million, divided into 1.5 million shares with par value of =
P1.00 each to
=
P5.0 million, divided into 5.0 million shares with par value of =
P1.00 each. On the same date, the
stockholders approved the declaration of 50% stock dividends payable to stockholders of record as at
October 30, 1976.
In 1978, the stockholders reduced the proposed increase to =
P4.0 million, divided into 4.0 million
shares with par value of =
P1.00 each, and approved the payment of the 50% stock dividend to
stockholders of record as at October 30, 1976. The increase in authorized capital stock was approved
by the Philippine SEC on April 28, 1978.
The BOD and stockholders approved on January 29, 1997 and February 26, 1997, respectively, the
increase in the Company’s authorized capital stock from =
P4.0 million, divided into 4.0 million shares
with par value of =
P1.00 each to =
P1.0 billion, divided into 1.0 billion shares with the same par value.

14. Retained Earnings
On December 29, 2017, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to =
P120.7 million or
=
P0.30 per share to stockholders on record as at January 26, 2018 payable on February 15, 2018.
On December 29, 2016, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to =
P60.2 million or
=
P0.15 per share to stockholders on record as at January 18, 2017 payable on January 31, 2017.
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On May 16, 2016, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to =
P120.8 million or =
P0.30 per share
to stockholders on record as at May 31, 2016 payable on June 15, 2016.
The Company’s retained earnings are not available for declaration as dividends to the extent of the
cost of treasury stock and recognized deferred tax assets. As at December 31, 2017, the Company’s
retained earnings available for dividend declaration amounted to =
P322.6 million.

15. Revenue, Cost of Services and Operating Expenses
Revenue
The Company’s revenue is composed of broadcasting fees, net of sales discounts as shown below.

Broadcasting fees
Less sales discounts

2017
P
=1,081,811,603
15,425,377
P
=1,066,386,226

2016
=
P1,266,375,961
14,421,240
=
P1,251,954,721

In 2017 and 2016, revenue arising from exchange of goods and services, included in broadcasting
fees, amounted to =
P3.1 million and =
P0.4 million, respectively.
Processing income
The Company recognized processing income amounting to =
P60.7 million and =
P50.0 million in 2017
and 2016, respectively, for the stations’ share of common expenses.
Cost of services

Program costs (see Notes 13 and 21)
Service fees (see Note 14)
Personnel expenses (see Notes 13,
18 and 19)
Depreciation (see Note 9)
Replacement parts

2017
P
=347,216,624
217,135,258

2016
=
P368,758,281
308,962,148

48,690,979
12,123,197
8,046,964
P
=633,213,022

51,529,278
11,100,300
8,309,748
=
P748,659,755

Operating expenses:

Personnel (see Notes 14, 18 and 19)
Sales commissions
Communication, light and water
Rent (see Note 21)
Taxes and licenses
Depreciation and amortization (see Notes 9,
10 and 11)
Repairs
Travel and transportation

2017
P
=85,560,385
48,555,413
28,860,249
21,982,050
20,572,685

2016
=
P90,270,447
55,506,469
26,437,037
22,126,789
12,358,132

18,666,345
15,189,371
15,057,118

18,935,101
17,529,504
12,584,069

Forward
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2017
Provision for (reversal of) doubtful accounts - net
(see Note 6)
Professional fees
Subscription fee
Outside services
Replacement parts
Advertising and promotions
Dues and membership
Entertainment, amusement and recreation
Materials and supplies
Commissions
Inventories written-off
Others

P
=14,657,647
8,033,562
7,840,264
7,183,182
6,881,221
6,169,753
4,413,891
1,120,859
1,101,276
615,787
–
16,320,388
P
=328,781,446

2016
(P
=11,950,248)
9,037,919
3,496,765
7,237,431
7,188,594
7,432,730
5,035,837
635,235
1,549,479
2,889,861
1,291,159
11,397,945
=
P300,990,255

Materials and supplies that are recognized as part of “Program costs” and “Materials and supplies”
accounts under “Cost of services” and “Operating expenses”, respectively, amounted to =
P2.4 million
and =
P2.3 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

16. Personnel Expenses

Salaries, wages and bonuses
Retirement benefits cost (see Note 19)
Other short-term employee benefits

2017
P
=110,200,072
7,747,136
16,304,156
P
=134,251,364

2016
=
P117,402,806
8,837,500
15,559,419
=141,799,725
P

17. Accrued Retirement Benefits
The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering all of its
remaining employees. The benefits are based on years of service and compensation on the last year
of employment. The latest actuarial valuation report is as at December 31, 2017.
Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay
to qualified private sector employees in the absence of a retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum
funding for the plan.
The components of retirement benefits cost are as follows:

Current service cost
Net interest cost

2017
P
=7,088,038
659,098
P
=7,747,136

2016
=
P7,491,673
1,345,827
=
P8,837,500
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Remeasurements on accrued retirement benefits recognized in OCI consist of actuarial gains (losses)
on:

Present value of benefit obligation (PVBO)
Fair value of plan assets (FVPA)

2017
P
=7,022,421
(1,197,041)
P
=5,825,380

2016
=
P16,293,523
(1,641,075)
=
P14,652,448

Movements in the remeasurements on accrued retirement benefits follow:

Beginning balance
Remeasurement gain, net of deferred tax liability
Ending balance

2017
P
=23,783,563
4,077,766
P
=27,861,329

2016
=13,526,849
P
10,256,714
=23,783,563
P

Deferred income tax effect of remeasurements amounted to =
P1.7 million and =
P4.4 million 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Note 20).
The amounts recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:

PVBO
FVPA
Accrued retirement benefits

2017
P
=94,034,918
89,215,670
P
=4,819,248

2016
=
P89,332,922
76,633,545
=
P12,699,377

2017
P
=12,699,377
7,747,136
(5,825,380)
(9,801,885)
–
P
=4,819,248

2016
=
P27,635,054
8,837,500
(14,652,448)
(7,814,738)
(1,305,991)
=
P12,699,377

2017
P
=89,332,922
7,088,038
4,636,379

2016
=
P95,115,859
7,491,673
4,632,142

(3,384,313)
(3,638,108)
–
P
=94,034,918

(13,652,396)
(2,641,127)
(1,613,229)
=
P89,332,922

Movements in the accrued retirement benefits follow:

At beginning of year
Retirement benefits cost
Remeasurement effects in OCI
Contributions
Benefits paid from operating fund
At end of year
The changes in PVBO are as follows:
At beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gain arising from:
Experience adjustments
Changes in assumptions
Benefits paid
At end of year
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The changes in FVPA are as follows:

At beginning of year
Contributions
Interest income
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid
At end of year

2017
P
=76,633,545
9,801,885
3,977,281
(1,197,041)
–
P
=89,215,670

2016
=67,480,805
P
7,814,738
3,286,315
(1,641,075)
(307,238)
=76,633,545
P

The management and the trustee bank review the performance of the retirement fund (the Fund) on a
regular basis and assess whether the Fund will achieve an investment return which, together with
contributions, will be sufficient to pay retirement benefits when they fall due.
The Fund consists of the following assets and investments:
•

Cash and cash equivalents, which include regular savings and time deposits earning interest at
their respective bank deposit rates;

•

Investments in government securities, which include retail treasury bonds and fixed treasury
notes that bear interest ranging from 2.9% to 9.0% and will mature in 1.75 to 21.92 years;

•

Investment in BDO institutional equity fund;

•

Investment in stocks of a third party with a market value of =
P106.70 per share;

•

Investments in debt securities, consisting of various corporate bonds which earn interest ranging
from 4.37% to 6.27% and have remaining maturities of 1.17 to 6.33 years; and

•

Dividends receivables, interest receivables and accounts receivables from brokers.

The objective of the plans portfolio is capital preservation by earning higher than regular deposit rates
over a long period given a small degree of risk on principal and interest. Asset purchases and sales
are determined by the plan’s trustee bank, who have been given discretionary authority to manage the
distribution of the assets to achieve the plan’s investment objectives. In order to minimize the risks of
the fund, the committee monitors compliance with target asset allocations and composition of the
investment portfolio on a regular basis.
The Company expects to contribute =
P16.3 million in 2018. The Company does not have any assetliability matching strategy.
The categories of plan assets as a percentage of the FVPA as at December 31 are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in government securities:
Fixed treasury notes
Retail treasury bonds
Investment in unit investment trust fund

2017
10.2%

2016
23.95%

61.95%
2.87%
0.72%

46.16%
5.39%
2.53%

Forward
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Investment in stocks
Investments in debt securities:
Banks
Holding firm
Utilities
Property
Telecommunications
Receivables

2017
0.71%

2016
0.76%

4.40%
5.35%
2.57%
9.67%
0.73%
0.83%
100.00%

5.86%
2.94%
7.53%
3.61%
0.72%
0.55%
100.00%

The assumptions used to determine retirement benefits of the Company as at January 1 are as follows:
2017
5.64%
10.00%

Discount rate
Salary increase rate

2016
5.19%
10.00%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the reasonably possible change of each
significant actuarial assumption on the retirement obligation as at December 31, 2017 assuming all
other assumptions were held constant:

Increase
(decrease)
Discount rate:
Sensitivity 1
Sensitivity 2
Salary increase rate:
Sensitivity 1
Sensitivity 2

Increase (decrease)
in retirement
benefit obligation

1.00%
(1.00%)

(P
=6,741,510)
8,721,386

(5.00%)
(2.50%)

(19,153,770)
(13,345,714)

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at
December 31, 2017:
Plan year
Within one year
More than one year to five years
More than five years to 10 years
More than 10 years to 15 years
More than 15 years to 20 years
More than 20 years

Expected Benefit Payment
=32,377,766
P
13,336,913
12,184,564
10,731,779
70,832,914
1,206,563,869

The defined benefit retirement plan is funded by
other participating companies, which are related
parties of the Company. The plan contributions are based on the actuarial present value of
accumulated plan benefits and fair value of plan assets are determined using an independent actuarial
valuation. The net defined benefit cost and the contributions to the plan are specifically identifiable,
such that, the Company’s PVBO pertains only to the benefit of the Company’s employees and the
FVPA, pertains only to the contributions made by the Company. The Company shall contribute to
the Fund such amounts as shall be required, under actuarial principles, to provide the benefits and the
expenses incident to the operation and administration of the Fund.
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There are no related party transactions between the Fund and the Company.

18. Income Taxes
a. The provision for income tax consists of:
Regular corporate income tax Current income tax
Final tax
Deferred tax Relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

2017

2016

P
=59,061,052
50,452
59,111,504

=
P76,027,132
43,957
76,071,089

(4,330,844)
P
=54,780,660

5,866,787
=
P81,937,876

b. Deferred income tax charged directly to equity during the year follows:
Remeasurements on accrued
retirement benefits (see Note 19)
Revaluation increment on land
(see Note 9)

2017

2016

P
=1,747,614

=
P4,395,734

1,523,310
P
=3,270,924

7,422,210
=
P11,817,944

c. The reconciliation of income tax computed at the statutory tax rate to provision for income tax as
shown in profit or loss follows:
Statutory income tax
Additions to (reductions in) income tax
resulting from:
Nondeductible expenses
Dividend income exempt from tax
Nontaxable income
Interest income subjected to final tax at a lower
rate
Provision for income tax

2017
P
=53,753,964

2,576,046
(1,386,310)
(137,246)
(25,794)
P
=54,780,660

2016
=
P80,562,859

1,397,121
–
–
(22,104)
=
P81,937,876
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d. The components of the Company’s net deferred tax liabilities consist of the tax effects of the
following:
Deferred tax assets on:
Allowances for:
Doubtful accounts
Inventory obsolescence
Accrued rent
Accrued retirement benefits and unamortized
contribution to past service cost
Unearned rentals
Deferred tax liabilities on:
Revaluation increment on land
Unamortized debt issue costs
Unrealized foreign exchange gain

2017

2016

P
=20,935,362
293,026
919,448

=
P16,564,484
293,026
115,499

184,664
–
22,332,500

2,144,418
312,860
19,430,287

63,353,912
317,971
1,012
63,672,895
P
=41,340,395

61,830,602
–
–
61,830,602
=
P42,400,315

Republic Act (RA) No.10963 or the Tax Reform for Acceleration and Inclusion Act (TRAIN) was
signed into law on December 19, 2017 and took effect January 1, 2018, making the new tax law
enacted as of the reporting date. Although the TRAIN changes existing tax law and includes several
provisions that will generally affect businesses on a prospective basis, the Company assessed that the
same will not have any significant impact on the parent company financial statement balances as of
the financial reporting date.

19. Lease Commitments
a. The Company leases satellite communications capacity for the performance of its broadcasting
services called the Transponder Lease, which considers certain space segment capacity and
transponder power. The lease agreement is for a period of five years from November 1, 2012 and
was renewed for another five years commencing on November 1, 2017. Rent expense on this
lease agreement amounted to =
P5.5 million in 2017 and =
P5.3 million in 2016, included under
“Program costs” presented as part of “Costs of services” in the parent company statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 17).
Future minimum lease payments as at December 31 are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years

2017
P
=5,092,860
19,522,630
P
=24,615,490

2016
=
P4,748,260
–
=4,748,260
P

b. In 2016, the Company revised the period of its lease agreement with a related party for its office
space into one year, renewable annually with a fixed monthly rental of =
P0.9 million, thereby
resulting to a reversal of accrued rent relating to the straight-line computation of rental payments
from the old lease agreement amounting to =
P4.7 million. Rent expense on this lease agreement
amounted to =
P10.7 million included under “Rent” presented as part of “Operating expenses” in
the 2017 and 2016 parent company statements of comprehensive income.
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c. The Company has lease agreements with various individuals for the rent of transmitter sites.
Rent expense on these lease agreements amounted to =
P5.7 million and =
P3.7 million in 2017 and
2016, respectively, included under “Rent” presented as part of “Operating expenses” in the parent
company statements of comprehensive income (see Note 17). Future minimum lease payments
as at December 31 are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years

2017
P
=4,977,217
5,307,353
1,127,469
P
=11,412,039

2016
=
P2,555,049
5,533,505
2,277,958
=
P10,366,512

20. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company’s principal financial instruments consist of cash and loans payable. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to fund the Company’s operations. The other financial assets and
financial liabilities arising directly from its operations are receivables, due from affiliates, AFS
financial assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, talent fees, commissions payable and
dividends payable.
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk.
The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks.
Credit Risk
Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of control and
monitoring procedures. It is the Company’s policy that all clients who wish to trade on credit terms
are subjected to credit verification procedures. Receivables and due from affiliates balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to its receivables as low, as its
customers are located in several industries and operate in largely independent markets.
With respect to credit risk arising from the Company’s cash in banks, the Company’s exposure arises
from the default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments. The Company deals only with financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the
BOD. The Company avoids concentrations of credit risk on its liquid assets as these are spread over
several financial institutions.
The maximum exposure of the Company to credit risk as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is equal to
the carrying values of the financial assets. The Company does not hold collaterals as security.
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Credit quality of financial assets
The tables below summarize the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets as at
December 31:
2017
Neither past due nor impaired
Standard
High grade
grade
Loans and receivables:
Cash*
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates
AFS financial assets:
Quoted
Unquoted

Past due but
not impaired

Impaired

Total

P
= 129,917,776

P
=–

P
=–

P
=–

P
=129,917,776

21,292,445
8,399,505
196,574
139,785,802

79,147,255
8,080,887
528,148
–

194,919,721
19,507,200
3,506,509
–

80,873,101
3,907,868
12,653,531
–

376,232,522
39,895,460
16,884,762
139,785,802

120,000
–
P
= 299,712,102

–
42,299,455
P
= 130,055,745

–
–
P
=217,933,430

–
455,275
P
= 97,889,775

120,000
42,754,730
P
=745,591,051

P
=–
P
=–
P
=–
P
= 5,952,212
–
–
–
63,832,327
P
=–
P
=–
P
=–
P
= 69,784,539
*Amount is exclusive of cash on hand amounting to =
P3,664,390 as at December 31, 2017.

P
=5,952,212
63,832,327
P
=69,784,539

Allowance for doubtful
accounts for loans and
receivables:
Individual impairment
Collective impairment

2016
Neither past due nor impaired
Standard
High grade
grade
Loans and receivables:
Cash*
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates
AFS financial assets:
Quoted
Unquoted

Allowance for doubtful
accounts for loans and
receivables:
Individual impairment
Collective impairment

Past due but
not impaired

Impaired

Total

=
P216,595,826

=
P–

=
P–

=
P–

=
P216,595,826

33,204,686
5,486,448
–
93,040,514

105,597,082
5,278,331
4,003,515
–

91,839,382
12,741,851
1,914,920
–

72,124,984
2,552,569
9,840,065
–

302,766,134
26,059,199
15,758,500
93,040,514

120,000
–
=
P348,447,474

–
42,299,455
=
P157,178,383

–
–
=
P106,496,153

–
455,275
=
P84,972,893

120,000
42,754,730
=
P697,094,903

=
P–
–
=
P–

=
P–
–
=
P–

=
P–
–
=
P–

=
P25,964,530
29,250,416
=
P55,214,946

=
P25,964,530
29,250,416
=
P55,214,946

*Amount is exclusive of cash on hand amounting to =
P558,000 as at December 31, 2016.

Financial assets classified as “high grade” are those cash in banks transacted with reputable local
banks and receivables and due from affiliates with no history of default on the agreed contract terms.
Financial instruments classified as “standard grade” are those financial assets with little history of
default on the agreed terms of the contract. A financial asset is considered past due when a
counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. “Past due but not impaired”
financial assets are items with history of frequent default. Nevertheless, the amounts due are still
collectible. Lastly, “Impaired” items are those that are long outstanding and have been identified as
impaired.
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Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
The tables below summarize the aging analysis of past due but not impaired financial assets as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016:

<30 Days
Loans and receivables
Receivables
Trade
Advances to stations
Others

Loans and receivables
Receivables
Trade
Advances to stations
Others

31-60
Days

61-90
Days

P
=58,309,604

P
= 62,051,888
7,880,683
19,269
P
= 69,951,840

P
=58,309,604

P
= 35,708,485
2,073,657
202,560
P
= 37,984,702

<30 Days

31-60
Days

61-90
Days

=
P–

=
P40,177,231
1,354,486
21,571
=
P41,553,288

=
P37,165,646
5,147,561
5,782
=
P42,318,989

–
–

–

1,284
=
P1,284

2017
91-120
Days

Over 120
Days

Total

2,355,373
P
=12,977,436

P
= 28,227,681
9,552,860
929,307
P
= 38,709,848

P
=194,919,721
19,507,200
3,506,509
P
=217,933,430

2016
91-120
Days

Over 120
Days

Total

=
P9,865,649
6,239,804
978,066
=
P17,083,519

=
P91,839,382
12,741,851
1,914,920
=
P106,496,153

P
=10,622,063
–

=
P4,630,856
–

908,217
=
P5,539,073

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when obligations are not met when they fall due. It is the Company’s objective
to finance capital expenditures, services, and maturing obligations as scheduled. To cover the
Company’s financing requirements and at the same time, manage its liquidity risk, the Company uses
internally generated funds and proceeds from debt. Projected and actual cash flow information are
regularly evaluated and funding sources are continuously assessed.
The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 based on contractual undiscounted payments:
Less than
3 months

2017
3 to 12
Months

P
= 101,341,359 P
=132,860,073
7,770,169
13,271,119

P
=38,727,031
–

–
–
–
3,095,307
P
= 109,111,528 P
=149,226,499

– 225,000,000 225,000,000
8,838,128
37,720,374
49,653,809
P
=47,565,159 P
=262,720,374 P
= 568,623,560

On demand
Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*
Dividends payable
Loans payable
Principal
Interest

More than
12 months

Total

P
=– P
= 272,928,463
–
21,041,288

*Amounts are exclusive of nonfinancial liabilities amounting to =
P65,607,292 as at December 31, 2017.

Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses*
Dividends payable
Talent fees and commissions
payable

On demand

Less than
3 months

2016
3 to 12
Months

=
P73,876,086
14,162,469

=
P87,727,852
–

=
P69,258,830
–

=
P– =
P230,862,768
–
14,162,469

5,306,511
=
P93,345,066

5,311,374
=
P93,039,226

1,759,389
=
P71,018,219

–
12,377,274
=
P– =
P257,402,511

More than
12 months

Total

*Amounts are exclusive of nonfinancial liabilities amounting to =
P 64,259,231 as at December 31, 2016
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The following tables show the profile of financial assets used by the Company to manage its liquidity
risk:

Cash*
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates

On
Demand
P
= 129,911,776
100,439,700
16,480,392
724,722
139,785,802
P
= 387,342,392

2017
Less than
3 Months
P
=–
156,069,977
9,954,340
221,829
–
P
= 166,246,146

3 to 12
Months
P
=–

Total
P
=129,911,776

38,849,744
9,552,860
3,284,680
–
P
= 51,687,284

295,359,421
35,987,592
4,231,231
139,785,802
P
=605,275,822

*Amount is exclusive of cash on hand amounting to =
P3,664,390 as at December 31, 2017

Cash*
Receivables:
Trade
Advances to stations
Others
Due from affiliates

On
Demand
=
P216,595,826
138,801,768
10,764,779
4,003,515
93,040,514
=
P463,206,402

2016
Less than
3 Months
=
P–
77,342,877
6,502,047
28,637
–
=
P83,873,561

3 to 12
Months
=
P–

Total
=
P216,595,826

14,496,505
6,239,804
1,886,283
–
=
P22,622,592

230,641,150
23,506,630
5,918,435
93,040,514
=
P569,702,555

*Amount is exclusive of cash on hand amounting to =
P558,000 as at December 31, 2016

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily to its loans payable with floating interest rates.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s income before income tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) in 2017 to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant. There is no impact on the Company’s equity other than
those already affecting the net income.

Drawdown date
July 2017
August 2017
October 2017
December 2017

Effective
Interest rate
5.20%
5.16%
5.02%
5.87%

Increase by 1%
(P
=1,764,871)
(2,118,133)
(2,284,690)
(1,515,215)

Decrease by 1%
=
P1,968,417
2,366,307
2,964,578
1,792,728

Equity Price Risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in equity price relates primarily to its quoted AFS
financial asset. Management believes that the Company’s exposure to equity price risk is minimal
since the balance of quoted AFS financial asset is not material.
Capital Management
The Company’s capital structure pertains to the mix of long-term sources of funds. When the
Company expands, it needs capital, and that capital can come from debt or equity.
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The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios and strong credit ratings while viably supporting its business to maximize shareholder
value.
The following table summarized the Company’s capital structure as at December 31:
2017
P
=402,803,777
79,354
356,997,048
(120,787)
P
=759,759,392

Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock

2016
=402,803,777
P
79,354
353,261,206
(120,787)
=
P756,023,550

The Company’s approach focuses on efficiently allocating internally generated cash for operational
requirements and investments to grow the existing business. Shortages if any and acquisitions or
investments in new business are funded by the incurrence of additional debt largely capped by
existing loan covenants on financial ratios.
All financial ratios are within the required limits in 2017 as follows:
Financial Ratios
Loan Agreement
Debt to equity
Current ratio

Required

2017

Not allowed to exceed 2:1
Not allowed to fall 1:1

0.68:1
1.76:1

21. Changes in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities
The movements of the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities in the 2017 parent
company statement of cash flows follow:

Non-current interestbearing loans and
borrowings
Loans payable
Interest payments
Dividends payable
(see Note 18)
Total liabilities from
financing activities

January 1,
2017

Cash flows

Dividend
declaration

Interest
expense

December 31,
2017

=
P–
–

=
P223,875,000
(2,798,398)

=
P–
–

=
P65,096
3,504,256

=
P223,940,096
705,858

14,162,469

(113,784,558)

120,663,377

–

21,041,288

=
P14,162,469

=
P107,292,044

=
P120,663,377

=
P3,569,352

=
P245,687,242
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22. Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The Company offsets its receivable and payable to its affiliates as the Company intends to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (see Note 14). The gross
amounts of the due from and due to its affiliates and the amounts disclosed in the statement of
financial position as at December 31 are as follows:

Due from related
Affiliates(c)
Due to related
Affiliates (d)

Gross amounts

2017
Amounts
offset(a)

Reported amounts(b)

Net
exposure

P
=199,346,888

P
=59,561,086

P
=139,785,802

P
= 139,785,802

59,561,086

59,561,086

–

–

(a) Amounts offset under PAS 32
(b) Reported amounts in the parent company statement of financial position
(c) Total advances and dividend income in Note 14
(d) Dividends declared and advances from FHBI in Note 14

Due from related
Affiliates (c)
Due to related
Affiliates (d)

Gross amounts

2016
Amounts
offset(a)

Reported amounts(b)

Net
exposure

=
P124,515,395

=
P31,474,881

=
P93,040,514

=
P93,040,514

31,474,881

31,474,881

–

–

(a) Amounts offset under PAS 32
(b) Reported amounts in the parent company statement of financial position
(c) Total advances in Note 14
(d) Dividends declared and advances from FHBI in Note 14

23. Fair Value Measurement
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying values of financial assets and liabilities are equal to
their estimated fair values.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:
AFS financial assets
The fair value of the quoted shares of stock as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is based on quoted
market price (Level 1). Unquoted shares of stock amounting to =
P42.3 million as at December 31,
2017 and 2016 are carried and presented at cost since the fair values of such investments cannot be
reliably determined.
Other financial assets and financial liabilities
Due to the short-term nature of other financial assets and financial liabilities, the fair value of cash in
banks, receivables, due from affiliates, accounts payable and accrued expenses, dividends payable
and talent fees and commissions payable approximate the carrying value as at the financial reporting
date.
Loans payable. The carrying value approximates fair value due to quarterly repricing.
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The following table provides the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s assets measured at fair value
and those for which fair values are disclosed and the carrying amounts differ from fair value as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016:
2017
Fair value measurement using
Significant
observable
Quoted prices in
active markets
inputs
Total
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
Assets measured at fair value:
AFS financial assets Quoted equity securities
(see Note 7)
Land at revalued amount (see Note 9)
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Investment properties (see Note 10):
Land
Building and other property

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

P
= 120,000
221,575,900

P
= 120,000
–

P
=–
–

P
=–
221,575,900

92,347,400
82,325,000

–
–

–
–

92,347,400
82,325,000

2016
Fair value measurement using

Total
Assets measured at fair value:
AFS financial assets Quoted equity securities
(see Note 7)
Land at revalued amount (see Note 9)
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed:
Investment properties (see Note 10):
Land
Building and other property

Significant
Quoted prices in
active markets observable inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

=
P120,000
216,498,200

=
P120,000
–

=
P–
–

=
P–
216,498,200

92,347,400
82,325,000

–
–

–
–

92,347,400
82,325,000

There were no transfers between the different hierarchy levels in 2017 and 2016.

24. Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of issued and outstanding common
shares during each year. Diluted EPS is computed as if the potential common share or instrument that
may entitle the holder to common share were exercised as at the beginning of the year. When there
are no potential common shares or other instruments that may entitle the holder to common shares,
diluted EPS, is the same as the basic EPS.
There are no dilutive financial instruments in 2017 and 2016, hence, diluted EPS is the same as the
basic EPS.
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The Company’s EPS were computed as follows:

(a) Net income
(b) Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Basic/ diluted EPS (a/b)

2017
P
=124,399,219
402,682,990

2016
=186,604,989
P
402,682,990

P
=0.31

=0.46
P

25. Other Matter
The Company is and may become a defendant/respondent in various cases and assessments which are
pending in the courts or under protest. Management and its legal counsels believe that the liability, if
any, that may result from the outcome of these cases and investigation will not materially affect its
financial position and results of operations.

26. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010
In compliance with Bureau of Internal Revenue Regulations 15-2010 issued on November 25, 2010,
mandating all taxpayers to disclose information on taxes and license fees paid and accrued during the
taxable year, summarized below are the taxes paid and accrued by the Company in 2016.
a. Output VAT declared by the Company amounted to =
P124,305,336 based on receipts of
=
P1,035,877,802. Outstanding net output tax payable amounted to =
P4,202,838 as at
December 31, 2017.
The Company’s revenue on which output VAT is declared, is based on collections, hence, may
not be the same as the amounts accrued in the parent company statement of comprehensive
income.
The total output VAT includes deferred output VAT, hence, may not be the same as the amount
of net output tax payable declared in the returns.
b. Movements in input VAT are as follows:
Balance, January 1
Current year payments for capital goods
subject to amortization
Total available input VAT during the period
Claims for tax credit and other adjustments
Balance, December 31

Amount
=
P–
88,651,085
88,651,085
(88,651,085)
=
P–
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c. Taxes and licenses paid by the Company are as follows:
Amount
=
P4,554,131
10,018,004
2,377,636
1,157,356
94,078
2,371,480
=
P20,572,685

Business permits
Deficiency taxes
Permits and fees
Real property taxes
Local taxes
Others

d. Withholding taxes paid and accrued by the Company are as follows:
Expanded withholding tax
Withholding tax on compensation
and benefits
Final withholding taxes

Paid
=
P25,440,801

Accrued
=
P2,861,551

Total
=
P28,302,352

15,222,325
7,875,508

1,919,260
89,643

17,141,585
7,965,151

e. The Company has no ongoing tax assessments or tax cases as at December 31, 2017.
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